
Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         July 11, 2022 
 

Russell County Page 1 
 

  
RUSSELL COUNTY 

 
BOARD OF SUPERVISOR’S MEETING 

 
AGENDA – JULY 11, 2022 

 
BOS Board Room                              Regular Meeting               5:00 PM 

 
Russell County Governmental Center 

Lebanon, Virginia 24266 
 

 
 

 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL – Clerk of the Board 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION (CLOSED) – Legal Matters – Russell County Commissioner of the 
Revenue v. Northrop Grumman Systems Corp. and Specific Legal Matters  
(Executive Session will begin at 5 p.m. and closed to the general public.  Citizens are welcome to attend and wait in the boardroom until 
Executive Session is complete.) 
 
INVOCATION   
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Approval of Minutes.  Consider approval of the minutes of the  
following meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors….……………A-1 
 

a. Unapproved minutes of June 6, 2022 
 

b. Unapproved minutes of June 15, 2022 
 

c. Unapproved minutes of June 21, 2022 
 

d. Unapproved minutes of June 29, 2022 
 

 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         July 11, 2022 
 

Russell County Page 2 
 

 
2. Approval of Expenditures. Consider approval of expenditures presented  

for payment……………………………………………………………………………...A-2 
 

3. Committee Appointments for Board Consideration……………………………...A-3 
 

Department of Social Services Board (LDSS) 
 
Andrew Hensley                           4 Year-Term                June 30, 2022 
Donnie Ramey                              4 Year-Term                June 30, 2022 
 
Heart of Appalachia Tourism Development Authority (HOA) 
 
Victoria Gent                                2 Year-Term                               September 10, 2022 

 
CITIZEN’S COMMENT PERIOD (Limited to 3 Minutes) 
 
CONSTITUTIONAL OFFICER REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 
COUNTY ATTORNEY REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 

REPORTS 
 

1. VACo 2022 Annual Conference, Richmond Convention Center, November                         
13-15, 2022……………………………………………………..…………………………C-1 

 
2. VACo Region 12 & 13 Legislative Meeting - Russell County Gov’t Center 

August 23, 2022 – 1 P.M. to 3 P.M…………………………………………………….C-2 
 

3. Bristol Transportation District Regional Improvement Commission                                            
(Casino Board)……………………………………………………………….…………..C-3  
  

REQUESTS 
 
4. Proclamation – Spinal Muscular Atrophy Awareness Day – 8/22/2022………..C-4 

 
5. VDOT Resolution – Virginia Smart Scale Project – Sundown Drive Project….C-5 

 
6. VDOT Dante Depot Project Renovation Contract………………………………….C-6 

 
7. BOS Resolution – Dante Steam Building Restoration Project..………………...C-7 

 
8. RC Electoral Board – On-Demand Ballot Printing System……………………….C-8 

 
9. American Rescue Plan Act 0f 2021 - $2,582,009.50………………………………..C-9 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         July 11, 2022 
 

Russell County Page 3 
 

 
10. County Convenience Site Schedule…………………...……….....…………………C-10 

 
11. RC Planning Commission Plat – Cedars Subdivision Lot 19  -                                                 

Sykes Investments …………………………………………….………………………..C-11 
 

12. RC Honaker & Castlewood Canneries – 7/19/2022………………………………...C-12  
 

BOARD DISCUSSIONS & REMINDERS 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
COUNTY AGENCY / BOARD REPORTS: 
        

• Treasurer’s Report ………………………………………………………………………D 
• RC IDA …………………………………………………………………………………….E 
• RC PSA …………………………………………………………………………………... F 
• RC Tourism……………………………………………………………………………….G 
• RC Planning Commission ……………………………………………………………..H 
• Conference Center……………………………………………………………………….I 
• RC Transportation & Safety…………………………………………………………....J 
• RC Cannery Reports…………………………………………………………………….K 
• RC Building Inspector…………………………………………………………………..L 
• RC Litter Report………………………………………………………………………….M   



CLOSED SESSION 
 

Motion made by , second by and duly approved by the 
Board of Supervisors enter into closed session to discuss Legal Matters pursuant to 
Section 2.2-3711(A)(5)(7)(8) – Legal Discussions concerning the Russell County 
Commissioner of the Revenue v. Northrop Grumman Systems Corp and Specific Legal 
Matters.     

The vote was: 
Aye:     
Nay:     

CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED SESSION 
 
Pursuant to §2.2-3712 (D) of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended, each member of the 
Board of Supervisors upon the Roll Call certifies that to the best of their knowledge (i) only 
public business matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements under the 
Virginia Freedom of Information Act and (ii) only such public business matters that were 
identified in the motion(s) by which the closed meeting was convened were heard, 
discussed or considered in the meeting by the Board of Supervisors. 

Any member of the Board of Supervisors who believes that there was a departure from the 
requirements of clauses (i) and (ii) above shall so state prior to the vote, indicating the 
substance of the departure that, in his or her judgment, has taken place. 

Are there any Supervisors who believe a departure has taken place? 

Seeing none, if you agree that the matters heard, discussed, or considered during the 
closed meeting were pursuant only to the motion(s) by which the closed meeting was 
convened, please signify by saying aye or yes. 

Tim Lovelace - 

Lou Ann Wallace - 

Carl Rhea - 

Steve Breeding - 

David Eaton - 

Rebecca Dye - 

Oris Christian - 

APPROVAL TO RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 

Motion made by , second by and duly approved by 
the Board of Supervisors to return to regular session. 

The vote was: 
Aye:     
Nay:     



 
     Board of Supervisors                       Action Item A-1 

137 Highland Drive  Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

         Meeting: 7/11/22       6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Minutes  

Request approval of the minutes from the following meeting: 

o Unapproved minutes of June 6, 2022 

o Unapproved minutes of June 15, 2022 
 

o Unapproved minutes of June 21, 2022 
 

o Unapproved minutes of June 29, 2022 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board discretion 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve Board Minutes. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• Board Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

June 06, 2022 

A regular monthly meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors was held on Monday, June 06, 

2022 beginning at 5:00 pm with Executive(closed) Session followed by the regular meeting at 6:00 pm at 

the Russell County Government Center in Lebanon, Virginia. 

The Clerk called the meeting to order. 

Roll Call by the Clerk: 

Present: 

Tim Lovelace 
Lou Wallace 
Carl Rhea 
David Eaton 
Steve Breeding 
Rebecca Dye 
Oris Christian 
 
Lonzo Lester, Clerk 
Vicki Porter, Deputy Clerk 
Katie Patton, County Attorney 
 
Absent: 
 
None 
 

EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
enter into Executive (Closed) Session to discuss Legal Matters pursuant to Section 2.2-3711(A)(5)(7)(8) – 
Legal Discussions concerning a potential business locating at the Moss III Property and Russell County 
Commissioner of the Revenue v. Northrup Grumman Systems Corporation. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye: Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None  

APPROVAL TO RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
return to regular session. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye: Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None  

 
 



CERTIFICATION OF EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION 
 
Pursuant to § 2.2-3712(D) of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended each member of the Board of 
Supervisors upon the Roll Call certifies that to the best of their knowledge (I) only public business 
matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements under the Virginia Freedom of 
 
Information Act and (ii) only such public business matters that were identified in the motion(s) by which 

the closed meeting was convened were heard, discussed, or considered in the meeting by the Board of 

Supervisors. 

Any member of the Board of Supervisors who believes that there was a departure from the 
requirements of clauses (I) and (ii) above shall so state prior to the vote, indicating the substance of the 
departure that, in his or her judgment, has taken place. 
 
Are there any who believe a departure has taken place?  Seeing none, if you agree that the matters heard, 

discussed, or considered during the closed meeting were pursuant only to the motion(s) by which the 

closed meeting was convened, please signify by saying aye or yes. 

Tim Lovelace – AYE 
Lou Wallace – AYE 
Carl Rhea – AYE 
David Eaton – AYE 
Rebecca Dye - AYE 
Steve Breeding – AYE 
Oris Christian – AYE 
 
Invocation by Caleb Johnson, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
   
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the agenda as amended. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay: None 
 
Acknowledgements 
 
The Board recognized C.H. Wallace – Town of Honaker Mayor - 26 Years of Service and James A. “Jim” 
Baldwin – CPPD Executive Director – 50 Years of Service 
 
Presentations 
 
Richard Lockridge, Chair of the Russell County Industrial Development Authority gave a presentation 
about the IDA projects and requested that Carlton Elliott be re-appointed to the iDA. 
 
 



New Business 
 

APPROVAL OF THE MAY 02, 2022 AND MAY 10, 2022 MINUTES 
 
Motion made by Carl Rhea, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the May 02, 2022 and May 10, 2022 minutes and dispense with the reading thereof. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None  
 

APPROVAL OF GENERAL COUNTY INVOICES 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second David Eaton, second Oris Christian and duly approved by the 
Board of Supervisors to approve general county invoices including reoccurring and withholdings. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

CARLTON ELLIOTT RE-APPOINTED TO THE RUSSELL COUNTY IDA 
  
Motion made by Carl Rhea, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to re-
appoint Carlton Elliott to the Russell County Industrial Development Authority for a four-year term, said 
term ending June 07, 2026. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

JUDY LOCKRIDGE RE-APPOINTED TO THE CUMBERLAND PLATEAU REGIONAL HOUSING AUTHORITY 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
re-appoint Judy Lockridge to the Cumberland Plateau Regional Housing Authority for a four-year term, 
said term ending June 30, 2026. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
Citizens Comment 
 
The Chair opened citizen’s comment. 
 
Sandy Hess, Swords Creek questioned the legality of the ordinance pertaining to the employee bonus’ 
approved at the May 02, 2022 board meeting. 
 



Alex Bartley, Castlewood commented on the difficulty she was having with the Clinch River Little 
League’s president concerning the use of the fields. 
 
Lynn Hess, Swords Creek commented that the agenda was not on the website until the afternoon, he 
also wanted to know the (3) three-minute limit for citizens comment could be changed to (4) four 
minutes. 
 
Craig Boyd, Vansant stated that he also has had experienced problems with the Clinch River Little 
League’s president. 
 
The Chair closed citizens comment period. 
 
County Attorney Requests and Reports 
 
Katie Patton, County Attorney asked the board to consider approving the deed with Contura Energy 
after making a minor change. 
 

APPROVAL OF A LAND DEED OF GIFT – DANTE TRAIL PARKING FROM CONTURA ENERGY 
 
Motion made by Rebecca Dye, second Oris Christian and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a Land Deed of Gift – Dante Trail Parking from Contura Energy. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Rebecca Dye, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, David Eaton and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 
 
 
County Administrator Reports and Reports 
 

APPROVAL OF VDOT RESOLUTION TO ABANDON RT. T-1211 
 
Motion made by Carl Rhea, second Oris Christian and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a VDOT Resolution Notice of Intent to Abandon Route T-1211 – Portion of Rte. 82 – Town of 
Cleveland’s Water Tank & Cleveland Barrens. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Carl Rhea, Oris Christian, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and David Eaton 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF VDOT RESOLUTION CLOSING A PORTION OF ROUTE 315 
 
Motion made by Oris Christian, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a VDOT Resolution Closing a Portion of Rte. 315, Red Oak Ridge Road for Reconstruction of VA 
Structure #6145. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace, Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 



 
 
 
 

APPROVAL OF THE DANTE STEAM BUILDING RESTORATION PROJECT CONTRACT 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Rebecca Dye and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the Dante Steam Building Restoration Project Contract. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Rebecca Dye, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF LOU WALLACE RESIGNATION FROM THE CIFA BOARD 
 

Motion made by Tim Lovelace, second Oris Christian and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
accept the resignation of Lou Wallace from the CIFA Board effective immediately in order to be in 
compliance with the CIFA by-laws. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye: Tim Lovelace, Oris Christian, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  Steve Breeding and David Eaton  
 

REBECCA DYE RE-APPOINTED TO THE CIFA BOARD 
 
Motion made by Rebecca Dye, second Oris Christian and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
re-appoint Rebecca Dye to the CIFA Board to fill the remainder of her four-year term. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye: Rebecca Dye, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding and Carl Rhea 
 

APPROVAL TO SURPLUS A 2008 CHRYSLER VAN AND TRANSFER TO RUSSELL COUNTY SCHOOLS 
 
Motion made David Eaton, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to surplus a 
2008 Chrysler Van and transfer to Russell County Schools. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye, Oris Christian and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO CHANGE THE JULY BOS MEETING TO JULY 11, 2022 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Oris Christian and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
set the July Board of Supervisors meeting date for Monday, July 11, 2022 at 6:00 pm. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Oris Christian, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace and Lou Wallace 



Nay:  None 
 
 
 

VDOT RESOLUTION APPROVED FOR ROUTE 58 
 
Motion made by Rebecca Dye, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a VDOT Resolution for Route 58. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Rebecca Dye, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Oris Christian and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 
 
The meeting was adjourned by the Chair. 
 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________                                     _____________________________ 
Clerk of the Board                                                                Chair 
 
 



June 15, 2022 

 

A meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors was held on Wednesday, June 15, 2022 at 6:00 pm 
at the Russell County Government Center in Lebanon, Virginia. 

The Clerk called the meeting to order. 

Roll Call by the Clerk: 

Present: 
 
Tim Lovelace 
Lou Wallace 
Carl Rhea 
David Eaton  
Rebecca Dye 
Oris Christian 
 
Lonzo Lester, Clerk 
Loretta Vance, Secretary 
Katie Patton, Attorney 
 

Absent: 

Steve Breeding 

 

Invocation by Caleb Johnson, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

 

A motion to approve the agenda was made by Tim Lovelace, second by David Eaton and duly approved 
by the board.     

                                     

PUBLIC HEARING HELD ON THE FY 2022/2023  FINANCIAL BUDGET 

 

Pursuant to being advertised for two (2) consecutive weeks, a public hearing was held on the FY 
2022/2023 Financial Budget.  The Chair opened the public hearing to comments. 

 



Kelly McBride Delph, RCPL Director, spoke about the proposed library budget and the financial budget 
in general. 

Kim Fife, RCPL board member, spoke on the minimum wage increase and current employee wages. 

Josh Barrett, President of Honaker Lions Club, spoke requesting donations for the upcoming 4th of July 
celebrations in Honaker. 

Hearing no other comments, the public hearing was closed. 

  

The Chair stated the budget workshop is on June 21st @ 6:00 pm in the board room. The meeting was 
then adjourned. 

  

 

________________________________                                             _______________________________ 
Clerk of the Board      Chairperson 
 



June 21, 2022 

A special called meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors was held on Tuesday, June 21, 2022 

at 6:00 pm at the Russell County Government Center in Lebanon, Virginia to for the purpose of 

conducting a Budget Workshop and Public Hearing on the FY 2033/2023 Budget. 

Present:   
 
Tim Lovelace 
Lou Wallace 
Carl Rhea 
David Eaton 
Oris Christian 
Steve Breeding 
 
Lonzo Lester, Clerk 
Vicki Porter, Deputy Clerk 
 
Absent: 
 
Rebecca Dye 
 
The Chair called the meeting to order. 

Invocation by Caleb Johnson, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 

 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 

approve the agenda as presented. 

The vote was: 

Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Oris Christian and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 

PUBLIC HEARING ON THE FY 2022/2023 BUDGET 

Pursuant to being advertised in a local newspaper for (2) two consecutive weeks, a public hearing was 

held on the FY 2022/2023 Budget. 

The Chair opened the public hearing to comments, hearing none the public hearing was closed. 

Budget Workshop 

The County Administrator presented solutions on how to balance the proposed budget. The state 

budget was also discussed. 

After a short discussion, the Chair asked for comments from the public concerning the workshop, no 

comments were given. 



The Chair adjourned the meeting. 

 

 

________________________________                                                  _____________________________ 
Clerk of the Board                                                                                        Chairperson 



June 29, 2022 

A special called meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors was held on Wednesday, June 29, 

2022 at 6:00 pm at the Russell County Government Center in Lebanon, Virginia. 

The Clerk called the meeting to order. 

Roll Call by the Clerk: 

Present: 

Tim Lovelace 
Lou Wallace 
Carl Rhea 
David Eaton 
Steve Breeding 
Oris Christian 
Rebecca Dye 
 
Lonzo Lester, Clerk 
Rebekah Campbell 
Katie Patton, County Attorney 
 
Absent: 
None 
 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the agenda as presented. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Oris Christian and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
 
The County Administrator gave a brief overview of the budget and answered questions form the 
Board. 
 
Members of the public were given the opportunity to speak concerning the budget, there were no 
comments.  
 

 
APPROVAL OF THE FY 2022/2023 BUDGET RESOLUTION 

 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Tim Lovelace to approve the FY 2022/2023 Budget Resolution. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Rebecca Dye and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  David Eaton, Carl Rhea and Oris Christian 



 
WHEREAS, the Budget/Finance Committee has submitted to the Russell County Board of 

Supervisors a proposed annual budget for the County for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2022, and 

ending June 30, 2023, which has been reviewed by the Board of Supervisors; and WHEREAS, it is 

necessary to adopt said budget and appropriate sufficient funds to cover the requirements included 

therein; and WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors, in exercising its independent judgment and in 

concert with the Russell County School Board, has considered the school’s annual operating budget; 

and WHEREAS, after considering the availability of local funds, approval of the Russell County 

School Board’s Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Educational Budget is based upon funding from the federal 

government in the amount of $9,426,790; from the state government in the amount of $36,211,653; 

from the local appropriations in the amount of $9,101,317; and other local revenues in the amount of 

$473,554;  

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the annual budget in the sum of $2,007,453 for fiscal year 

2022/2023 be, and is hereby, approved for the operation of food service programs authorized and 

approved by the Russell County School Board subject to and contingent upon the availability of 

funds; 

 

BE IT STILL FURTHER RESOLVED that the $9,101,317 appropriated above from the General Fund 

for Education, includes $8,024,781 for the local contribution to the School Division for support of the 

school operation budget; 

 

BE IT STILL FURTHER RESOLVED that an annual appropriation in the sum of $1,076,536 for fiscal 

year 2022/2023 be, and is hereby, made for school debt service; for a total amount of $9,101,317 

appropriated for the Russell County School Division subject to and contingent upon the availability 

of funds;  

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Russell County Board of Supervisors this 29h day of 

June 2022, that the fiscal year 2022/2023 annual budget of the Russell County School Division for 

school operations in the amount of $57,220,767 be, and is hereby, approved subject to and contingent 

upon the availability of funds as indicated in the preamble hereto; 

 

BE IT STILL FURTHER RESOLVED that the following annual appropriations for fiscal year 

2022/2023 be, and are hereby, made in the General Fund for the following functions: 

 

Function  

 

Amount General Administration $ 1,929,171 

Judicial Administration $2,738,645  

Public Safety $6,579,503 

Environmental Control $1,879,978 

General Services $941,771  

Health and Welfare $1,316,807 

Education $9,334,518  

Parks, Recreation & Cultural $530,505  

Community Development $325,276 

Non-Departmental $325,250  

Capital Outlay & Transfers to Other Funds $283,868  



Debt Service $975,310  

 

Total General Fund $ 27,160,603 

 

 

BE IT STILL FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Administrator be, and is hereby, authorized to 

transfer the appropriations in the General Fund Non-Departmental function to the related categories 

in the various General Fund functions.  

 

BE IT STILL FURTHER RESOLVED that the annual appropriation in the sum of $150,000 for fiscal 

year 2022/2023 be, and is hereby, made in the Coal Road Fund. 

 

BE IT STILL FURTHER RESOLVED that the annual appropriation in the sum of $197,052 for fiscal 

year 2022/2023 be, and is hereby, made in the Southwest Virginia ASAP Fund.  

 

BE IT STILL FURTHER RESOLVED that the annual appropriation in the sum of $5,494,856 for 

fiscal year 2022/2023, and is hereby, made in the Social Services Fund for the Russell County 

Department of Social Services and is hereby, approved subject to and contingent upon the 

availability of funds as indicated in the preamble hereto. 

 

BE IT STILL FURTHER RESOLVED that the annual appropriation of the Social Services Fund be, 

and is hereby, increased if and when additional federal and/or state funds or local contributions 

become available. The County Administrator shall advise the Board of Supervisors in writing of all 

such actions.  

 

BE IT STILL FURTHER RESOLVED that the annual appropriation in the sum of $1,400,0000 for 

fiscal year 2022/2023 be, and is hereby, made in the Comprehensive Services Act Fund and is hereby, 

approved subject to and contingent upon the availability of funds as indicated in the preamble 

hereto. 

  

BE IT STILL FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Treasurer, upon receipt of a written order from 

the County Administrator, is authorized to advance funds between the County funds under his 

custody provided, however, that the total advanced to any fund, plus the amount of funds disbursed 

from that fund, does not exceed the annual appropriation of said fund.  

 

BE IT STILL FURTHER RESOLVED that, the County Administrator shall be, and is hereby, 

authorized to do all things necessary to apply for federal and state library aid and in addition, the 

annual appropriation for library operations.  

 

BE IT STILL FURTHER RESOLVED that, the County Treasurer shall be, and is hereby, authorized 

to implement a 10 percent penalty and an interest rate at a rate not to exceed the rate of interest 

established pursuant to §6621 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954, as amended, or 10 percent 

annually, whichever is greater, for the second and subsequent years of delinquency. No penalty for 

failure to pay a tax or installment shall exceed 10 percent of the tax past due on such property. In 

addition, the County Treasurer shall charge a service fee for credit and debit card payments. 

 

BE IT STILL FURTHER RESOLVED that, upon receiving notice of grant or program opportunities 

offered by various federal, state, local and other outside organizations, the County Administrator or 

her designee be, and is hereby designated as the agent to execute the necessary grant or program 



application and other documentation, unless the terms of the grant or program require specific 

actions by the Board, to give such assurances as may be required by the agreement subject to 

approval as to form by legal review and to provide such additional information as may be required by 

the awarding organization. Funding awarded shall be subject to appropriation by the Board of 

Supervisors prior to expenditure.  

 

BE IT STILL FURTHER RESOLVED that interest earned on grant and program awards received 

from federal, state, local and other outside organizations be, and is hereby, appropriated to the 

appropriate functional area to be expended in accordance with guidelines as established by the 

organizations.  

 

BE IT STILL FURTHER RESOLVED those additional funds received for various County programs, 

including contributions and donations, be, and are hereby, appropriated for the purpose established 

by each program.  

 

BE IT STILL FURTHER RESOLVED those funds received for the off-duty employment by deputy 

sheriff’s programs be, and hereby are, appropriated in the General Fund to cover the costs of the 

program. 

 

BE IT STILL FURTHER RESOLVED that upon receipt of written notification from the State 

Compensation Board of additional funds for the Constitutional Officers (Commonwealth’s Attorney, 

Sheriff, Clerk of Court, Treasurer and Commissioner of the Revenue) be, and are hereby, appropriated 

in the General Fund to be expended in accordance with guidelines as established by the state 

government.  

 

BE IT STILL FURTHER RESOLVED that the annual contributions that are hereby appropriated 

shall be disbursed on a monthly basis with the amount disbursed not to exceed onetwelfth of the total 

appropriation, unless otherwise agreed upon. Contributions to the Russell County School Division 

and the Russell County Department of Social Services are exempt from this limitation. In addition, 

the County Administrator may require written reports on how previous allocation(s) was/were spent 

before any future disbursements are made. 

 

BE IT STILL FURTHER RESOLVED that the funds be, and are hereby, appropriated for fiscal year 

2022/2023 in the various funds for continuing capital and special projects and grants as of June 30, 

2022, not to exceed the Restricted, Committed and Assigned Fund Balances as recorded in the 

County’s audited accounting records. The County Administrator shall advise the Board of 

Supervisors in writing of all such actions.  

 

BE IT STILL FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Administrator be, and is hereby, authorized to 

transfer funds within appropriation functions. These transfers may be made to allow the 

disbursement of funds for unanticipated costs incurred in daily County operations and any such 

transfer may not result in a change in the total appropriated within the function. 

  

BE IT STILL FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Administrator is hereby the authorized signer 

for the County petty cash account available to allow for emergency purchases in daily County 

operations.  

 

BE IT STILL FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors may amend this budget to adjust 

the aggregate amount to be appropriated during the current fiscal year as prescribed by § 15.2-2507 of 



the Code of Virginia of 1950, as amended, for all Russell County Departments, Russell County School 

Divisions, and Russell County Constitutional Offices. 

 

Citizens Comment 
 
The Chair opened citizens comment period. 
 
Darrell Johnson, Castlewood Fire & Rescue, stated that the County has  grant money  for radios, the 
EMS side has radios, he asked that the Fire & Rescue receive them as well. 
 
Hearing no other comments, citizen’s comment period was closed by the Chair. 
 
The meeting was adjourned by the Chair. 
 
 
 
_______________________________                                                    ______________________________ 
Clerk of the Board                                                                                        Chairperson 



 
                                                      Board of Supervisors                         Action Item A-2 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

        Meeting: 7/11/22      6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Expenditures 

Request approval of the County’s June 2022 Monthly Expenditures: 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):  
County’s June 2022 Monthly Expenditures are in compliance with budget and operational 

services. 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve County’s June 2022 Monthly Expenditures. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• June 2022 Monthly Expenditures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

















 
Board of Supervisors  Action Item:  A-3 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson  
Lebanon, VA 24266 

        Meeting: 7/11/22        6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

      Board Appointments 
Department of Social Services Board (LDSS) 
 
Andrew Hensley                           4 Year-Term                June 30, 2022 
Donnie Ramey                              4 Year-Term                June 30, 2022 
 
Heart of Appalachia Tourism Development Authority (HOA) 
 
Victoria Gent                                2 Year-Term                               September 10, 2022 























COUNTY OF RUSSELL, VIRGINIA 

COMMITTEE APPLICATION 

Print Form 	 OFFICE USE ONLY:. 
Date Received: 

Letter Sent: 

Currently Serving On : 

NAME: 

(Last) 	 (First) y 	 (Middle Initial) 	(Mr., Mrs., Miss, Rank) 

HOME ADDRESS: AO. 6 1039 

 

 

Vh a,qa uo  Ti1terasse1i.14 13.14/  uS 
(Email Address) 

  

TELEPHONE NUMBERS: , LO 70/.33 00 - 
(Home)  (Business) 	 (FAX) 

PROFESSION/VOCATION: ge076iereei A 14156 / Ed (4,6i4iOn 

 

  

BOARDS/COMMISSIONS ON WHICH YOU WISH TO SERVE: Depao 01,50a6.1 Set viees 
(List no more than 3 -- in order of preference:) 

OTHER INTERESTS: 

EDUCATION: 65 - N u rs i nj 

JOB EXPERIENCE: —  Nay 44 i fl arsiny. 2.1 y)o. - 61A-144.4 ithuae,vta  cg-o r.,IL  

P(115 -AA.A.FeA_A ;uvrt, amiim-k-Q offa. /CI rAto  

CIVIC OR SERVICE ORGANIZATION EXPERIENCE: 	 d ilieeteja 	1414.L.LS?  

ARE YOU CURRENTLY A MEMBER OF A RUSSELL COUNTY BOARD OR COMMISSION? Ail0 

IF YES, PLEASE NAME: 

HAVE YOU PREVIOUSLY SERVED AS A MEMBER OF A RUSSELL COUNTY BOARD OR COMMISSION? /1/0  

IF YES, PLEASE NAME: 

ARE YOU A REGISTERED VOTER? 

 

DISTRICT NUMBER: 

 

    

    



OTHER INTERESTS (Continued): 

JOB EXPERIENCE (Continued) 

CIVIC OR SERVICE ORGANIZATION EXPERIENCE (Continued): 





































 

Board of Supervisors  Action Item C-1 – C-12 
137 Highland Drive Presenter: Administrator 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

                     Meeting: 7/11/22         6:00 PM 
 

 

 

County Administrator Reports & Requests 
The County Administrator Reports & Request for June 2022: 

 
REPORTS 

 
1. VACo 2022 Annual Conference, Richmond Convention Center, November                         

13-15, 2022……………………………………………………..…………………………C-1 
 

2. VACo Region 12 & 13 Legislative Meeting - Russell County Gov’t Center 
August 23, 2022 – 1 P.M. to 3 P.M…………………………………………………….C-2 
 

3. Bristol Transportation District Regional Improvement Commission                                            
(Casino Board)……………………………………………………………….…………..C-3  

  
REQUESTS 

 
4. Proclamation – Spinal Muscular Atrophy Awareness Day – 8/22/2022………..C-4 

 
5. VDOT Resolution – Virginia Smart Scale Project – Sundown Drive Project….C-5 

 
6. VDOT Dante Depot Project Renovation Contract………………………………….C-6 

 
7. BOS Resolution – Dante Steam Building Restoration Project..………………...C-7 

 
8. RC Electoral Board – On-Demand Ballot Printing System……………………….C-8 

 
9. American Rescue Plan Act 0f 2021 - $2,582,009.50………………………………..C-9 

 
10. County Convenience Site Schedule…………………...……….....…………………C-10 

 
11. RC Planning Commission Plat – Cedars Subdivision Lot 19  -                                                 

Sykes Investments …………………………………………….………………………..C-11 
 

12. RC Honaker & Castlewood Canneries – 7/19/2022………………………………...C-12  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board Discretion.  
 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Board Discretion.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Various  
 

 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

http://www.russellcountyva.us/
http://www.russellcountyva.us/


VACo's Premier Event | November 13-15

Greater Richmond Convention Center

Dear VACo Members:

As VACo's biggest event of the year, the Annual Conference is a must for every
Virginia County Supervisor and county staff member. Drawing in hundreds of
officials, dozens of speakers, and a host of vendors and exhibitors, VACo's Annual
Conference provides opportunities to learn from others, grow in knowledge, and
improve skills.

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight



 

The Annual Conference includes:



·     General Sessions featuring elected officials, local leaders and
policy/government experts discussing and analyzing issues

 

·     Breakout Sessions designed to educate and enlighten

 

·     Exhibit Hall featuring companies and organizations showcasing
products and services unique to the needs of county government

 

·     Hands-on workshops

 

·     VACo's Annual Business Meeting where the Legislative Program is
adopted and the Board of Directors is elected for the upcoming year    

 

·     Steering Committee Meetings

 

·     Multiple team-building and networking opportunities

 

·     And Much More 

 

Annual Conference Registration Form | Online Conference Registration

 

 

VACo 2022 and Beyond

 

This year’s theme is "Counties Governing the New
Normal." Counties are returning to the everyday but
with some changes.

 

https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001U5U0TxACr0vB9P2E3-BhzdDuaL0K6Dsy2cq0K6oTpJpkHsvBsGUv7xkWB16EjOB7lXgP4VxuHPE7FLJ8KuYPvIZ1FBFnTuGBM1kSgirPxIRNszuXNznFboq91lXjqABgTm-6zUzrn_xZFwTQ_TYwi4DAcEbkQqbsL1ZkxgcBI6VP_O_GtmVvobq1bKFIzfbqNWTZIZDObttgDO3lvMfw1oVa8PTI82skP4INhnvKlDM=&c=n7XsIbTDEYCjxbEITsapJhhUbeTHl0BsIiJ3fHpMTYQjw-oBu5_vig==&ch=HSasy_CkwIuTmdNcngCDkft6EgqwXDsTSh5nhq7nMtoCGajaHO0JIA==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001U5U0TxACr0vB9P2E3-BhzdDuaL0K6Dsy2cq0K6oTpJpkHsvBsGUv772FQApJRe1KjM-QZPDvzy7oGHORxAha2vaiQcGGvmIfeQZHkYEjABPUzwj1rdRL3JRWMImkvyCwactW7TXsZh-wGaqxPer5H8Qc4ZR1VY06TXeEWXxlCjq3dl-VDadi7qDptk-rgYugmKXkhYcYOzJtfKqf3Doiq4VIZvpY-E6_IGV9KrfboWc=&c=n7XsIbTDEYCjxbEITsapJhhUbeTHl0BsIiJ3fHpMTYQjw-oBu5_vig==&ch=HSasy_CkwIuTmdNcngCDkft6EgqwXDsTSh5nhq7nMtoCGajaHO0JIA==
Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight



With roughly 1,000 local government officials, state
representatives, speakers and exhibitors in
attendance, VACo’s Annual Conference is the perfect opportunity to learn and
engage with peers from across the state.

 

 

Conference Logistics

 

All attendees are required to submit a conference registration form by mail, fax or
online in order to be registered. For those new to the process, room reservations for
this year's annual conference are separate from the annual conference registration.
The room reservation form will be released at a later date.

 

·     Annual Conference Registration Form 
·     Online Conference Registration

 

Call 804.343.2507 and ask for Valerie Russell if you need more information.

 

 

VACo Contact
 
If you have questions about the annual conference registration form or room
reservations, contact Valerie Russell at vrussell@vaco.org or 804.343.2507.

 

REGISTER NOW!
 

 

Connect with us

https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001U5U0TxACr0vB9P2E3-BhzdDuaL0K6Dsy2cq0K6oTpJpkHsvBsGUv7xkWB16EjOB7VREZqd6irnbx6K-wqxfq7C9kSIk4u3RQHQLYTbYTWpc7YO3F0C3TJ2ZC_JlEe9mdI4DgWPBSPJnyM0lzvXPcer7uW4nwUhO8IQ7josSlrwY-tSEeJOEMLBi3Uv3cU4K6nl7QYASiICu0Q8lY-Bc0KBFmqKSqmvWS&c=n7XsIbTDEYCjxbEITsapJhhUbeTHl0BsIiJ3fHpMTYQjw-oBu5_vig==&ch=HSasy_CkwIuTmdNcngCDkft6EgqwXDsTSh5nhq7nMtoCGajaHO0JIA==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001U5U0TxACr0vB9P2E3-BhzdDuaL0K6Dsy2cq0K6oTpJpkHsvBsGUv7xkWB16EjOB7lXgP4VxuHPE7FLJ8KuYPvIZ1FBFnTuGBM1kSgirPxIRNszuXNznFboq91lXjqABgTm-6zUzrn_xZFwTQ_TYwi4DAcEbkQqbsL1ZkxgcBI6VP_O_GtmVvobq1bKFIzfbqNWTZIZDObttgDO3lvMfw1oVa8PTI82skP4INhnvKlDM=&c=n7XsIbTDEYCjxbEITsapJhhUbeTHl0BsIiJ3fHpMTYQjw-oBu5_vig==&ch=HSasy_CkwIuTmdNcngCDkft6EgqwXDsTSh5nhq7nMtoCGajaHO0JIA==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001U5U0TxACr0vB9P2E3-BhzdDuaL0K6Dsy2cq0K6oTpJpkHsvBsGUv772FQApJRe1KjM-QZPDvzy7oGHORxAha2vaiQcGGvmIfeQZHkYEjABPUzwj1rdRL3JRWMImkvyCwactW7TXsZh-wGaqxPer5H8Qc4ZR1VY06TXeEWXxlCjq3dl-VDadi7qDptk-rgYugmKXkhYcYOzJtfKqf3Doiq4VIZvpY-E6_IGV9KrfboWc=&c=n7XsIbTDEYCjxbEITsapJhhUbeTHl0BsIiJ3fHpMTYQjw-oBu5_vig==&ch=HSasy_CkwIuTmdNcngCDkft6EgqwXDsTSh5nhq7nMtoCGajaHO0JIA==
mailto:vrussell@vaco.org
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001U5U0TxACr0vB9P2E3-BhzdDuaL0K6Dsy2cq0K6oTpJpkHsvBsGUv7xkWB16EjOB7lXgP4VxuHPE7FLJ8KuYPvIZ1FBFnTuGBM1kSgirPxIRNszuXNznFboq91lXjqABgTm-6zUzrn_xZFwTQ_TYwi4DAcEbkQqbsL1ZkxgcBI6VP_O_GtmVvobq1bKFIzfbqNWTZIZDObttgDO3lvMfw1oVa8PTI82skP4INhnvKlDM=&c=n7XsIbTDEYCjxbEITsapJhhUbeTHl0BsIiJ3fHpMTYQjw-oBu5_vig==&ch=HSasy_CkwIuTmdNcngCDkft6EgqwXDsTSh5nhq7nMtoCGajaHO0JIA==


Bristol Transportation District Regional Improvement Commission Agenda   

Russell County Government Center 

June 30, 2022  

 

1) Call to Order 
 

2) Approval of Meeting Agenda 
 

3) Presentation by Lottery Director Kelly Gee 
 

4) Comments by Legislative Delegation  
 

5) Election of Officers  
 

6) By-Laws Review & Consideration 
 

7) Next steps as Commission 
 

8) Next Meeting Date  

 

 

Tracy
Highlight



The Bristol Transportation District Regional Improvement Commission met at the 
Southwest Virginia Cultural Heritage Center in Abingdon, Va., Monday, May 23, 2022 at 
1:30 p.m. on publicly-advertised call of the first appointed member, Matthew C. 
Hankins.  
 
Members appointed and present included:  
Larry Barton, County Administrator, Dickenson  
Jason Berry, County Administrator, Washington  
Matthew Hankins, Assistant County Administrator, Wythe  
Richard Johnson II, Community & Economic Development Director, Lee  
Lonzo Lester, County Administrator, Russell  
Karen Mullins, County Attorney, Wise  
Fred Ramey, City Manager, Norton 
Lisa Richardson, Assistant County Administrator, Smyth  
Freda Starnes, County Administrator, Scott 
Eric Young, County Administrator, Tazewell 
 
Members appointed but not present: 
Eric Workman, County Administrator, Bland 
Bill Shepley, County Administrator, Grayson 
 
Localities not represented and awaiting appointment: 
City of Bristol 
Buchanan County 
 
Mr. Hankins welcomed the members present and detailed the governing Code Section 
and some of the issues facing the Commission. As senior commissioner, Mr. Hankins 
called for nominations for temporary chair. Mr. Lester nominated Mr. Berry as host 
locality. Mr. Young nominated Mr. Hankins. Mr. Hankins deferred to Mr. Berry, and Mr. 
Berry was elected unanimously as temporary chair on voice vote. 
 
Mr. Berry called for nominations for temporary recording secretary. Mr. Lester 
nominated Mr. Hankins, seconded by Mr. Young. Mr. Hankins was elected unanimously 
as temporary secretary on voice vote. 
 
Mr. Berry moved to the next business item, discussion of bylaws. Mr. Hankins presented 
a draft set of by-laws based on the Mt. Rogers Cigarette Tax Board. Ms. Mullins 
suggested holding off on approving by-laws until the Commission is fully constituted, as 
two localities are not yet represented. The Commission agreed to vote to adopt by-laws 
at a later meeting, with discussion at this meeting to shape the form of the by-laws. 
 
Mr. Hankins told the Commissioners the only proposed change submitted prior to the 
meeting was a request from Mr. Young to add a second vice-president. Each planning 
district commission shall be represented as either president, first vice president or 
second vice president, with the presidency rotating annually so each Planning District 

Tracy
Highlight



Commission has a representative serving as president of the Commission once every 
three years. The Commission consensus is to include that change. 
 
Commissioners discussed meeting frequency. The general consensus is to meet 
quarterly in central locations, generally between Abingdon and Lebanon, to keep the 
longest commissioner drives to roughly one-and-a-half hours. The Commission asks that 
the host county provide legal counsel for the meeting. 
 
The Commissioners present further discussed changes to the draft by-laws including 
adding a purpose statement, the last portion of the State Code section creating the 
Commission. Mr. Young made the motion to add the purpose statement, with a second 
from Ms. Mullins. The Commission unanimously agreed to the motion. 
 
The Commission discussed scheduling and a remote attendance policy. The Commission 
will decide after further discussion at its next meeting whether to meet biannually or 
quarterly. Ms. Mullins suggested the Commission allow remote attendance consistent 
with Virginia Freedom of Information Act (subject to the prior approval of the chair), 
that each locality be asked to appoint an alternate to attend and vote on its behalf in 
the absence of its appointee, and that no proxy votes be permitted. The board 
consensus favored those motions. Ms. Mullins asked that all counties provide the 
Commision secretary with written confirmation of its appointments. 
 
The commission discussed the division of funds, whether funds should be divided equally 
between the 14 localities or by population. After discussion, the general consensus of 
the Board is an equal 14-way split pending further conversation with legislators about 
their legislative intent.  
 
Commissioners generally agreed that localities should have flexibility in submitting 
spending priorities that comply with the statutory requirements. Most members arrived 
at consensus that they would prefer to designate their funding for EMS and fire 
department services, while others want to be able to use if for courthouse construction 
or renovation debt services or for VDOT revenue sharing transportation projects. The 
Commissioners agreed that localities may choose to use their entire allotment for a 
single purpose (ie, EMS or debt service), not requiring a set minimum spending 
percentage for any priority. 
 
The commission will ask the Lottery, casino representatives and legislators to attend 
the next meeting in Lebanon to clarify outstanding issues and provide the Commission 
with more clarity on how to proceed.  
 
Outstanding issues include: 
Fiscal agency: will the lottery distribute to localities directly if asked by the 
Commission, or will the Commission need a fiscal agent?  
How often will payments be distributed by the Lottery?  
Will the Commission be able to use portions of the funds for its operations (meeting 
expenses, audit, banking expenses, etc.)? 



The Board discussed including a purpose statement in the by-laws. The board’s 
consensus is to include the following statement from the Virginia Code as its purpose: 
“The Commission shall (i) receive disbursements made to it; (ii) establish funding 
priorities for member localities related to improvements in the areas of education, 
transportation, and public safety; and (iii) make annual payments divided equally 
among the jurisdictions to fund the established priorities as determined by the 
Commission.” 
 
The Commission agreed to schedule its next meeting at 10 a.m. June 30, 2022 at the 
Russell County Conference Center, 139 Highland Drive, Lebanon. 
 
With no further business to discuss, the Temporary Chair adjourned the meeting at 3 
p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Matthew C. Hankins 
Acting Recording Secretary 
 
 
Considered: ___________________________ 
 
Amended: ___________________________ 
 
Approved: ___________________________ 
 
 On motion by: ________________ 
 
 And second by: ________________ 
 
  Vote:  ________________ 



Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight



 
  

Russell County Virginia 
“The Heart of Southwest Virginia” 

 
Tim Lovelace  Steve Breeding 
District 1  District 5  
 
Carl Rhea      Lou Ann Wallace, Chairperson Rebecca Dye 
District 3  District 2 District 6 
  
David Eaton   Oris Christian, Vice-Chairman Lonzo Lester 
District 4   At-Large County Administrator 
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

  

 

   

    

 

 

Resolution of Support 
Virginia Smart Scale Project 

Application for the                  
County of Russell, Virginia 

WHEREAS, a comprehensive, cooperative, and continuing planning process is to 
be carried out in Russell County Virginia; and 

WHEREAS, Virginia Smart Scale established a prioritization and scoring 
process to evaluate projects for funding and project selection by the 
Commonwealth Transportation Board; and 

WHEREAS, Applications for the Virginia Smart Scale process are due August 
17, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, Counties are eligible to submit projects on Corridors of 
Statewide Significance with a resolution of support from the Russell County 
Board of Supervisors; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Russell County Board of 
Supervisors as follows: 

That the U.S. Route 58 Alt. Turn Lane Improvements at Sundown 
Drive Project in the County of Russell, Virginia, is fully supported 
and endorsed by the Russell County Board of Supervisors for the 
Smart Scale application and funding process. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a Resolution of Support for Virginia Smart 
Scale Project Applications for the County of Russell, Virginia is hereby 
approved. 
RESOLVED this 11th  day of July 2022, by the following vote: 
Recorded Vote: 
Moved By: __________________                         _____________________________ 
Seconded By: ________________                  Lou Ann Wallace, Chairperson 
                                                                                  Russell County Board of Supervisors 

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight



From: Dew, John
To: lonzo.lester russellcountyva.us; Bill Thompson; Rita Baker; Greg Widener
Cc: Roger Musser; Frye, Amy
Subject: UPC 113499 Russell Co - Dante Depot Award Authorization
Date: Friday, July 1, 2022 8:18:35 AM
Attachments: Award Letter to Bidder_DRAFT_UPC 113499_2022.06.29.pdf

Good morning All,
I am very pleased to communicate to you that we have been given the authorization to award
this project to Ken Construction. Greg Widener sent the attached draft award letter to me
before leaving for vacation.

Please proceed with the award, copy me and Roger Musser on the award letter sent to Ken
Construction, and let us know when a preconstruction conference is scheduled. Bristol District
Civil Rights staff will also need to be invited to the precon conference.

I thank all of you for your effort and patience in getting to this point, and I wish great
success on this project and the future of the Depot.

If you have questions or need additional information, please let me know.
Thank you

John B. Dew, P. E.
Locally Administered Projects Engineer
VDOT - Bristol District
2111 Bonham Rd
Bristol, VA 24201
276-696-3485 - office
276-791-9006 - mobile
John.Dew@VDOT.Virginia.gov

mailto:john.dew@vdot.virginia.gov
mailto:lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us
mailto:bthompson@t-l.com
mailto:rbaker@t-l.com
mailto:gwidener@t-l.com
mailto:roger.musser@vdot.virginia.gov
mailto:amy.frye@vdot.virginia.gov
mailto:John.Dew@VDOT.Virginia.gov



 


 
 
 


ENGINEERS     ARCHITECTS   


T&L    103 East Main Street    P.O. Box 1307    Wise, Virginia 24293    tel: 276.328.2161    fax: 276.328.1738    www.T-L.com 


June 29, 2022 
 
 
 
 
Lois Morrison 
Ken Construction Company, Inc.  
3966 Cross Roads  
Lebanon, Virginia 24266 
 
Re: Renovation of Dante Depot Facility  
 T&L Project No. 15226 
 
Dear Ms. Morrison: 
 
We are pleased to inform you that the Russell County Board of Supervisors has elected to accept your 
Total Base Bid of $318,000.00 on the above referenced project.   
 
We are in the process of preparing the Owner/Contractor Agreements which will be June 29, 2022, and 
will be forwarding these to you as soon as they are completed.  Please prepare the bonds and certificate(s) 
of insurance to be incorporated into the contract booklets. 
 
If you have any questions in this regard, please do not hesitate to contact us. 
  
Sincerely,  
 
 
 
 
Hannah Jessee 
Technical Office Assistant 
    
pc: Mr. Lenzo Lester, Russell County Board of Supervisors 
 Rita Baker, Thompson & Litton, Inc.  
 Bill Thompson, Thompson & Litton, Inc. 





Tracy
Highlight



 

 
 
 

ENGINEERS     ARCHITECTS   

T&L    103 East Main Street    P.O. Box 1307    Wise, Virginia 24293    tel: 276.328.2161    fax: 276.328.1738    www.T-L.com 

June 29, 2022 
 
 
 
 
Lois Morrison 
Ken Construction Company, Inc.  
3966 Cross Roads  
Lebanon, Virginia 24266 
 
Re: Renovation of Dante Depot Facility  
 T&L Project No. 15226 
 
Dear Ms. Morrison: 
 
We are pleased to inform you that the Russell County Board of Supervisors has elected to accept your 
Total Base Bid of $318,000.00 on the above referenced project.   
 
We are in the process of preparing the Owner/Contractor Agreements which will be June 29, 2022, and 
will be forwarding these to you as soon as they are completed.  Please prepare the bonds and certificate(s) 
of insurance to be incorporated into the contract booklets. 
 
If you have any questions in this regard, please do not hesitate to contact us. 
  
Sincerely,  
 
 
 
 
Hannah Jessee 
Technical Office Assistant 
    
pc: Mr. Lenzo Lester, Russell County Board of Supervisors 
 Rita Baker, Thompson & Litton, Inc.  
 Bill Thompson, Thompson & Litton, Inc. 

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight



 
  

Russell County Virginia 
“The Heart of Southwest Virginia” 

 
Tim Lovelace  Steve Breeding 
District 1  District 5  
 
Carl Rhea      Lou Ann Wallace, Chairperson Rebecca Dye 
District 3  District 2 District 6 
  
David Eaton   Oris Christian, Vice-Chairman Lonzo Lester 
District 4   At-Large County Administrator 
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

  

 

   

    

 

 

LETTER OF SUPPORT 
 

Dante Steam Building Revitalization Project 
Department of Housing and Community Development (DHCD) 

Industrial Revitalization Fund (IRF) 
 
WHEREAS, the Russell County Board of Supervisors hereby strongly supports this 
RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT for the Dante Steam Building Revitalization Project 
through the Department of Housing and Community Development (DHCD) Industrial 
Revitalization Fund (IRF).  
 
WHEREAS, the Dante Community Revitalization Master Plan was created through a 
partnership with the Dante Community Association, Russell County, and the Virginia 
Tech Community Design Assistance Center and many other local and regional partners. 
The plan identified multiple community assets in Dante that are prime for redevelopment 
for beneficial reuse, including the Steam Building, Depot, Arty Lee School, Trails (both 
motorized and non-motorized) and Museum. 
 
WHEREAS, a robust partnership has been working collaboratively to advance the 
Master Plan, including Russell County, The Dante Community Association, Virginia 
Tech Community Design Assistance Center, Appalachian Voices, Southwest Virginia 
Workforce Development Board, Spearhead Trails, The Nature Conservancy, People 
Incorporated, Appalachian Trail Conservation Corps, Dialogue + Design Associates, 
and others. 
 
WHEREAS, in line with the vision set forth in the Master Plan, the Steam Building 
redevelopment project is intended to rehabilitate the building to serve as a virtual 
training and co-working center, to be staffed and operated by the Southwest Virginia 
Workforce Development Board. This will provide a valuable service to the residents of 
Dante and the surrounding community and will help to connect Russell County residents 
to training and employment opportunities. 
 
WHEREAS, Russell County has successfully secured a Department of Housing and 
Community Development Industrial Revitalization Fund (DHCD IRF) technical 
assistance grant for the sum of $50,000 to perform preliminary architectural and 
engineering design, as well as to conduct an economic impact analysis. The next phase 
of the project is for Russell County to apply for an implementation grant from the same 



 

DHCD fund that will support finalizing all pre-construction needs (design, engineering, 
environmental, etc.) and construction. 

 
WHEREAS, multiple State, Federal and Private funding partners have invested 
substantially in the Dante Redevelopment effort, including Virginia Brownfields, EPA 
Brownfields, Virginia Energy, Virginia Housing, The Genan Foundation, Virginia 
Department of Transportation, Virginia Department of Housing and Community 
Development, Virginia Department of Wildlife Resources (formerly DGIF), Kaboom! 
Group, Rally Southwest Virginia, The United Way of Southwest Virginia, and others. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, with this Resolution of Support, the Russell 
County Board of Supervisors does hereby give its support to the above referenced 
DHCD IRF implementation request that will, if awarded, provide the necessary funds to 
finalize work on the Steam Building thereby fulfilling the vision set forth by the residents 
of Dante in the Dante Revitalization Master Plan. 
 
RESOLVED this 11th day of July 2022, by the following vote: 
 
Recorded Vote: 
 
Moved by:   __________________ 
Seconded by: ________________ 
 
Yeas: ______ 
Nays: ______                                                 ______________________________   

Lou Ann Wallace, Chairperson                                        
County of Russell, Virginia  



Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight



We appreciate your continued interest and support for all Democracy Technologies Services

Remit To:

DemTech Voting Solutions, Inc.

101 Fastener Lane

Longview, TX 75604

PH# 866.243.1151

Web: http://www.demtechvoting.com

DemTech Voting Solutions, Inc.

101 Fastener Lane
Longview, TX  75604 US
(430) 625-7068
accounts@demtechvoting.com

INVOICE
BILL TO

Diana Shorter
RUSSELL COUNTY
Courthouse Annex 96 Russell St 
P.O. Box 383
Lebanon, VA  24266

INVOICE # 1502
DATE 06/22/2022

DUE DATE 07/22/2022
TERMS Net 30

  

ACTIVITY QTY RATE AMOUNT

Software:Ballot On Demand Software License
Ballot On Demand Initial Software License

2 1,000.00 2,000.00

Hardware:Ballot On Demand Printer
Ballot Printer

2 800.00 1,600.00

Shipping
Shipping

1 185.00 185.00

 

WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A.

PENNY HILL

P.O. BOX 6995

PORTLAND, OR 97228

Account number: 5053945316

DEMTECH VOTING SOLUTIONS INC.

For Direct Deposit and Automatic Payments use

Routing Number (RTN): 031100869

For Wire Transfers use

Routing Number (RTN): 121000248

BALANCE DUE $3,785.00

Tracy
Highlight

















Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight



Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight





Tracy
Highlight


























































































	Authorization - Minutes BOS.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Authorization - Expenditures.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Cathy.PDF
	Page 1
	Page 2

	Reports1.pdf
	Meeting: 7/11/22         6:00 PM
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):
	ATTACHMENTS:

	VDOT Sundown Drive Resolution .pdf
	Virginia Smart Scale Project Application for the                  County of Russell, Virginia




